
1 
 

 

Management Staff: 
Charles L. Rough, Jr., Town Manager 
Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 
Joanna Gutierrez, Town Clerk 
Lauren Gill, Assistant Town Manager 
Craig Baker, Community Development Director 
Chris Buzzard, Police Chief 
Rob Cone, Interim Fire Chief 
Gina Will, Finance Director/Town Treasurer 

Town Council: 
Alan White, Mayor 
Steve “Woody” Culleton, Vice Mayor 
Joe DiDuca, Council Member 
Scott Lotter, Council Member 
Tim Titus, Council Member 

 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 PM – November 01, 2011 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a special accommodation to participate, 

please contact the Town Clerk's Dept., at 872-6291 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. Hearing 

assistance devices for the hearing impaired are available from the Town Clerk. 

Members of the public may address the Town Council on any agenda item, including closed session. If you 

wish to address the Town Council on any matter on the Agenda, it is requested that you complete a "Request 

to Address Council" card and give it to the Town Clerk prior to the beginning of the Council Meeting. 

All writings or documents which are related to any item on an open session agenda and which are 

distributed to a majority of the Town Council within 72 hours of a Regular Meeting will be available for public 

inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed to a majority of the subject body. The 

information will be available at the Town Hall in the Town Clerk’s Department at 5555 Skyway, Paradise, 

California, during regular business hours Monday through Thursday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

1.     OPENING 

              a.      Call to Order 

              b.      Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America 

              c.      Invocation 

              d.      Roll Call 

              e.      Proclamations:  None.  

2.     ITEMS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

1



2 
 

3.     CONSENT CALENDAR 

3a. Approve Minutes of the October 4, 2011 Regular Meeting and October 20, 

2011 Special Meeting.      

3b. Approve Cash Disbursements in the Amount of $1,352,621.95 

3c. Adopt Resolution No. 11-43, Amending  Resolution No. 09 – 68,  a 

Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Paradise Authorizing the 

Town Manager to Submit an Amended Application to the California 

Energy Commission for Funding Under the Energy Efficiency and 

Conservation Block Grant Program – Small City and County Grant 

Program.   

3d. (1) Approve the Request for Proposals to Replace the Safety Lighting at 

the Signalized Intersection with Funding From Energy and Conservation 

Block Grant (EECBG); and, (2) Authorize the Assistant Public Works 

Director to Advertise this Project for Bids. 

3e. (1) Approve the Request for Proposals to Convert T-12 Florescent 

Lighting Fixtures with T-8 Flourescent Lighting Fixtures at Town Hall, 

paradise Police Station and Install Exterior Lighting Upgrades at Town hall 

with Funding from Energy and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG); and, 

(2) Authorize the Assistant Public Works Director to Advertise the Project 

for Bids. 

3f. (1) Approve the Request for Proposals to Replace eight (8) HVAC Units at 

Paradise Police Station, Town Hall and Vehicle Maintenance Facility with 

Funding from Energy and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG); and, (2) 

Authorize the Assistant Public Works Director to Advertise This Project for 

Bids. 

3g. Approve a One-Year Professional Services Agreement with Jim Broshears 

to Provide Emergency Operations Center (EOC) Coordination, Planning 

and Training Support services in the Amount of $1.00.  

3h. Adopt Resolution No. 11-44, "A Resolution of the Town Council of the 

Town of Paradise Rescinding Resolution No. 11-29 and Authorizing the 

Submittal of an Application to the California State Department of Housing 

and Community Development for Funding Under the CalHOME Program; 

the Execution of a Standard Agreement if Selected for Such Funding and 

any Amendments Thereto: and Any Related Documents Necessary to 

Participate in the CalHOME Program. 

2



3 
 

3i. Approve the Town Manager's Amended Employment Agreement to Defer 

His Accrued Benefits Pay-Out Upon Retirement From the Current Fiscal 

Year 2011/12 to Fiscal Year 2012/13, and terminate his current 

employment agreement effective December 30, 2011. 

3j. Approve the recommended budget adjustments that will decrease the 

General Fund deficit and increase the General fund Reserves by $29,727. 

(Concession savings of $10,624 from OE3 General Unit Employment 

Agreement and $19,103 from the CMMA Unit Employment Agreement) 

4.     PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 

                 a.          Staff report (15 minutes total maximum) 

                 b.          Open hearing to the public 

                              1.           Project proponents or in favor of (15 minutes total maximum) 

                              2.           Project opponents or against (15 minutes total maximum) 

                              3.           Rebuttals - when requested (15 minutes total maximum or 3 

                                            minutes maximum per speaker) 

                 c.          Close hearing to the public 

                 d.          Council discussion 

                 e.          Motion 

                 f.           Vote 

5.     PUBLIC HEARINGS 

6.     PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

This is the time for members of the audience who have completed a "Request to Address Council" card and 

given it to the Clerk to present items not on the Agenda. Comments should be limited to a maximum of three 

minutes duration. The Town Council is prohibited by State Law from taking action on any item presented if it is 

not listed on the Agenda. 

7.     COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 

7a. Consider Designating Two Members of the Town Council to Serve on the 

Interview Panel for the Public Works Director/Town Engineer Position. 

7b. Consider Approving Saturday, December 3, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. as the Date 

and Time for the Town of Paradise's Fifth Annual Christmas Tree Lighting 

Ceremony/Food Drive at the Paradise Community Park. 

8.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION (Council Initiatives) 

8a. Council oral reports regarding their representation on 

Committees/Commissions. 

9.     STAFF/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION 

9a. Town Manager Oral Report 

3



4 
 

10.   CLOSED SESSION 

10a. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6, the Town Council will 

hold a closed session to meet with Charles L. Rough, Jr., Lauren Gill, 

Gina Will, and Crystal Peters, its designated representatives, regarding 

labor relations between the Town and the Firefighters' Association, the 

Management Unit, the Police Mid-Management Association, and the 

Police Officers Association. 

11.   ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

  

4



 MINUTES 
 PARADISE TOWN COUNCIL 
 REGULAR MEETING - 6:00 P.M. – October 4, 2011 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Paradise was called to order by 
Mayor White at 6:02 p.m. in the Council Chambers, Town Hall, 5555 Skyway, Paradise, 
California.  Following the pledge of allegiance, the invocation was offered by Council Member 
Joe DiDuca.    
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Steve "Woody" Culleton, Joe DiDuca, Tim Titus, and Alan 
White, Mayor.  
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: Scott Lotter. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Town Clerk Gutierrez, Town Manager Rough, Town Attorney Moore, 
Assistant Town Manager Gill, Finance Director Will, Community Development Director Baker, 
Assistant Public Works Director Derr, Assistant Town Clerk Volenski, Interim Fire Chief Cone, 
Battalion Chief Rapp, HR/Risk Manager Analyst Peters and Police Chief Buzzard. 
 
Proclamations:  The Domestic Violence Awareness Month proclamation was presented to 
Vince Ornelas, Member of Catalyst Board of Directors; and, the Book in Common for 
2011/2011- Zeitoun  - was presented to Brenda Crotts, Paradise Branch Librarian.   
 
 
2.     ITEMS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 
         
         None. 

 

  

3.     CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 

Manager Rough informed Council that the budget adjustment 
discussed in agenda item 3e will not take effect until the next fiscal 
year, and Council concurred to remove item 3e from the agenda.  
 
Comments related to agenda item 3c:  
 
1.  Tom Kelly stated that he would like Paradise to be declared a 
drug free zone, that the American Medical Association has stated 
that there is no medical use for marijuana, that the ordinance bans 
dispensaries and collectives and he would like to see marijuana 
banned from all neighborhoods 
 
2.  Gordy D. stated that he thinks the restrictions in the Constitution 
are on government and not on “we the people”, that the proposed 
ordinance is a slap in the face to the people that voted in 1996 to 
legitimize medical marijuana, and discussed his views on the 

 

5



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 
Date:  October 4, 2011   

2 

differences between a republican form of government and a 
democracy as each relates to sovereign power and the rights of the 
individual people.    
 
Agenda Item 3(a):  MOTION by Titus, seconded by DiDuca, 
approved Minutes of the September 6, 2011, Regular Council 
Meeting and the September 15, 2011, Special Council Meeting.  Roll 
call vote was unanimous with Lotter absent and not voting.       
 

TC (MIN) [APPR] 
Minutes of the 9/6/2011 
Regular & 9/15/2011 
Special Meetings.  

Agenda Item 3(b):  MOTION by Titus, seconded by DiDuca, 
approved Cash Disbursements in the amount of $958,648.92. Roll 
call vote was unanimous with Lotter absent and not voting.      
 

TC (FIN) [APPR] Cash 
Disbursements in the 
amount of $958,648.92. 
(310-10-27) 

Agenda Item 3(c):  MOTION by Titus, seconded by DiDuca, (1)  
made the finding that, pursuant to California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), the proposed ordinance 
is exempt from environmental review because there is no possibility 
that its adoption will have a significant effect on the environment and 
the proposed ordinance is not a project under CEQA because it is 
ministerial in nature; (2) Waived the second reading of entire 
Ordinance No. 523 and approved reading by title only; and, (3) 
Adopted Ordinance No. 523, An Ordinance of the Town of Paradise 
Repealing Chapter 17.31 of the Paradise Municipal Code and 
Adding a New Chapter 17.31 to the Paradise Municipal Code 
Restricting Medical Marijuana Cultivation.   Roll call vote was 
unanimous with Lotter absent and not voting.     
 

TC (ORD) [ADOPT] Ord 
No 523, Adding to PMC 
Ch 17.31 restricting 
medical marijuana 
cultivation.  (540-16-92) 
(750-95-10)  

Agenda Item 3(d):  MOTION by Titus, seconded by DiDuca, 
approved the request by Bob Irvine, Executive Director of California 
Vocations, Inc., (COVE) to adopt a portion of the Paradise Memorial 
Trailway from Rocky Lane northerly to Pentz Road. Roll call vote was 
unanimous with Lotter absent and not voting.     
 

TC (PW) [APPR] 
Trailway adoption by 
COVE as requested by 
Bob Irvine.  (950-18-03) 

Agenda Item 3(e):  Council concurred to remove this item from the 
agenda as the budget adjustment in the amount of $16,456 will not 
take effect until 2012/2013 fiscal year.   
 

N/A until 2012/13 

4.     PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE 
 
Mayor White informed the public that there were no public hearings 
scheduled for this meeting.   
 

 

5.     PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
None.     
 

 

6



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 
Date:  October 4, 2011   

3 

6.     PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
 

 

1.  Harold Eddy stated that he thinks the money being spent to 
improve the parks in Town should be used to improve the roads. 
 
Mayor White stated that the parks are under the control of a separate 
entity, the Paradise Recreation and Park District, and that the park 
monies are not available to the Town of Paradise.   
 
2.  Cynthia Harvey stated that she provided each Council Member a 
folder of information regarding the disappearance of her son Loren 
Harvey Jr., on October 15, 2010, that her son is a victim, that they 
have no answers, and asked Council to encourage the Paradise 
Police to open their files to the FBI to allow them to solve the crime at 
no cost to the Town.     
   

 

7.     COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

Following a report from Police Chief Buzzard regarding the cost of 
animal control operations, which includes the animal shelter, and the 
measures taken to enable the shelter to operate for the next three 
years, Mayor White opened the matter for public input. 
 
1.  Loren Harvey stated the he would like to remind Council that the 
load on retirement will continue to grow when sworn police officers 
are working in Animal Control. 
   

 

Agenda Item 7(a):  MOTION by DiDuca, seconded by Culleton, 
authorized the Finance Department to transfer $37,467 from the 
Animal Control Donation Account #7811.30.4540.5910.070 to Animal 
Control Account #2070.30.4540.3910.811 to reconcile the FY 
2010/2011 budget.  Roll call vote was unanimous with Lotter absent 
and not voting.   
 

TC (FIN) [AUTH] 
$37,467 transfer from 
AC Donation account to 
AC Account 
2070.30.4540.3910.811 
to reconcile budget. 
(340-10-32) (410-10-05)   

Following a report from Police Chief Buzzard regarding the proposed 
DUI cost recovery program, Mayor White opened the matter for 
public comment.  
  

 

1.  Gordy D. stated that he has no problem with keeping drunk or 
impaired drivers off the road, but has a problem with the Town billing 
without due process. 
 

 

2.  Fred Aldred stated that he does not defend drunk drivers, but is 
concerned with equality issues, and even though the State law 
allows the Town to pursue this certain group of offenders - drunk or 
impaired drivers - there are other actions that cause accidents that 

 

7



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 
Date:  October 4, 2011   

4 

require emergency response, such as accidents that occur while 
using a cell phone to send text messages, or dropping a cigarette in 
your lap while driving. 
 
3.  Jon Remalia questioned if it would take as much money to pursue 
collection of these proposed fees as would be collected, and that 
many people cannot even afford to get their vehicles out of impound.  
 

 

Agenda Item 7(b): Council concurred to the amendments 
recommended by the Town Attorney to the resolution proposed for a 
DUI Cost Recovery Program as follows:  
 
1. To Section 6, to establish that the amount of the cost 

recovery fee shall not exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000) 
(originally proposed at twelve thousand dollars); and,  

 
2.  To the first sentence in section 7 of the proposed resolution 

to require a person be convicted prior to billing a cost 
recovery fee, by striking the words “Within ten (10) days of 
…” and insert the words  “After the person is convicted of an 
offense for the … “.   

 

Motion failed re DUI 
Cost Recovery Program.  

The Motion by Titus, seconded by Culleton to adopt the amended 
Resolution No. 11-40, A Resolution Establishing Procedures, Fees 
and Charges for the Recovery of Public Safety Costs for Emergency 
Response Directly Related to Driving Under the Influence Incidents, 
DID NOT PASS.  Ayes of Culleton and Titus; noes of DiDuca and 
White; Lotter absent and not voting.  DiDuca stated for the record 
that he voted no as he would like to review information from other 
cities on this issue.  
 

 

Community Development Director reported to Council regarding the 
application for landmark tree status filed by Bill Meseke, Mayor White 
opened the matter for public comment. 
 

 

1.  Bill Meseke stated that he likes trees and landscape, that it was 
coincidental that he noticed information on the Town‟s website about 
the process of designating a landmark tree and that he thinks this is 
a nice thing to do that will add to the value of his property. 
 

 

Agenda Item 7(c):  MOTION by White, seconded by Culleton, (1) 
made the finding that, pursuant to California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), the proposed Landmark 
Tree Designation is exempt from environmental review because 
there is no possibility that its adoption will have a significant effect on 
the environment; and, (2) Adopted Resolution No. 11-40, A 

TC (RES)[ADOPT] Res 
No 11-40, Establishing 
Landmark Tree Status 
for tree located at 1627 
Meadowbrook Ln. (740-
60-20)   

8



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 
Date:  October 4, 2011   

5 

Resolution of the Town of Paradise Establishing Landmark Tree 
Status for a Large Black Oak Tree Growing on Residential Property 
Located at 1627 Meadowbrook Lane, Paradise, California (PL11-
00169, Meseke).  Roll call vote was unanimous with Lotter absent 
and not voting.   
 
Agenda Item 7(d):  MOTION by Titus, seconded by DiDuca, 
authorized a 90-day trial of an electronic agenda/meeting 
management solution to meet the Town Council‟s goal of 
streamlining processes through technology, vendor to be selected by 
staff.  Roll call vote was unanimous with Lotter absent and not voting. 
 

TC (ADMIN) (APPR) 90-
day trial of electronic 
agenda/meeting mgt 
solution. (160-50-11) 

8.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION (Council Initiatives) 
 

 

Agenda Item 8(a):  Council Member DiDuca reported on his 
attendance at the Butte College ceremonies held in commemoration 
of the tenth anniversary of the „911‟ terrorist attack on the twin towers 
in New York; and, that he went on the Paradise Irrigation District 
water tour. 
 
Vice Mayor Culleton reported on his attendance at the League of 
California Cities Annual Conference in San Francisco. 
 
Council Member Titus reported on his attendance at the Paradise 
Community Village groundbreaking ceremony and Johnny 
Appleseed Days.   
 
Mayor White reported on the Exchange Club “Blues & Brews” 
fundraiser for school music programs held as part of Johnny 
Appleseed Days; and, that he attended the PCV groundbreaking 
ceremony and the Butte County Air Quality Management District 
Meeting.  
 

 

9.     STAFF/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION 
 

 

Agenda Item 9(a):  Police Chief Buzzard informed Council that the 
Police Department has added a K-9 member to the Police force, a 65 
pound male German Shepherd named “Cash”, a protection dog. 
 

 

10.     CLOSED SESSION 
 
At 8:00 p.m. Mayor White announced that pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54957.6, the Town Council will hold a closed session 
to meet with Charles L. Rough, Jr., Lauren Gill, Gina Will, and 
Crystal Peters, its designated representatives, regarding labor 
relations between the Town and the Confidential/Mid-Management 

 

9



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 
Date:  October 4, 2011   

6 

Association, the Firefighters' Association, Fire Mid-Management 
Association, the General Employees Unit, the Management Unit, the 
Police Mid-Management Association, and the Police Officers 
Association. 
 
Mayor White reconvened the meeting at 8:20 p.m. and announced 
that no action was taken in closed session. 
 
11.     ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Council meeting was adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 

 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
ALAN WHITE, Mayor 
 
 
__________________________________ 
JOANNA GUTIERREZ, CMC, Town Clerk     

10



 MINUTES 
 PARADISE TOWN COUNCIL 
 SPECIAL MEETING – 9:15 A.M. – OCTOBER 20, 2011 

 
The Special Meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Paradise was called to order by 
Mayor White at 9:15 a.m. in the Council Chambers, Town Hall, 5555 Skyway, in Paradise, 
California.  
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:   Steve “Woody” Culleton, Joe DiDuca, Scott Lotter, Tim 
Titus, and Alan White, Mayor.    
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Town Clerk Gutierrez, Town Manager Rough, Town Attorney Moore, 
Manager Rough, Finance Director Will, Assistant Town Clerk Volenski, HR/Risk Management   
Analyst Peters, Community Development Director Baker, Assistant Public Works Director Derr, 
Police Chief Buzzard and Police Lieutenant Tazzari.  
 
2.  CLOSED SESSION  
 
At 9:17 a.m. Mayor White announced that pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54957.6, the Town Council would hold a closed 
session to meet with Charles L. Rough, Jr., Lauren Gill, Gina Will, 
and Crystal Peters, its designated representatives for the following: 
 
2a. Regarding labor relations between the Town of Paradise and 
the General Employees Unit; and, the Confidential/Mid-Management 
Association. 
 
2b. To review the authorized contract for services covering the 
Period from  December 31, 2011 through December 31, 2012 
between the Town of Paradise and Charles L. Rough, Jr. for Town 
Manager services. 
 
Mayor White reconvened the meeting at 9:58 a.m. and announced 
that no action was taken in closed session.    
 

 
 
 

3.     COUNCIL CONSIDERATION          
 

 

Manager Rough reported to Council that the agreements between 
the Town and the General Employees and the Confidential Mid-
Management groups places a cap on the Town share of the medical 
premium costs based on current medical premiums and removes the 
80/20 split provision; provides for a 5% reduction in salary through 
12/30/2012;  eliminates cash-out provision for sick leave and reduces 
the sick leave accrual cap from 2,000 hours to 1,040 hours 

 

11



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 
Date: October 20, 2011   

2 

maximum; agrees to Town Hall closure for the last two weeks in 
December for the term of the contract; and, with respect to the 
CMMA, reduces by 50% the administrative leave benefit for 
employees hired after November 1, 2011.  Manager Rough stated 
that the effect of capping the Town’s share of medical premium costs 
for active employees in these two groups will result in a $5.6 million 
dollar reduction to the Town’s retiree medical unfunded liability.  
($3.3 –General; $2.3 CMMA).     
 
Town Manager Rough explained how the two-week closure benefits 
the Town in that  all employees will be using vacation at this time 
reducing potential for staffing issues during open hours for the 
remainder of the year, and also reducing accrued vacation which is a 
cost to the Town.  Town Manager Rough stated that he and 
Assistant Town Manager Gill will be checking messages twice a day 
during this two-week period in order to address any critical needs of 
citizens and that an emergency contact number will be programmed 
into the answering system.   
 
Agenda Item 3(a):  MOTION by Titus, seconded by Culleton, 
adopted Resolution No. 11-41, a Resolution Approving the 
Memorandum of Understanding (relating to employment) Between 
the Town of Paradise and the Town of Paradise General Employees 
Unit Covering the Period from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2013.  Roll 
call vote was unanimous.   
 

TC (RES) [ADOPT] Res 
No 11-41, MOU between 
Town & General 
Employees relating to 
employment.   

Agenda Item 3(b):  MOTION by Titus, seconded by Culleton, 
adopted Resolution No. 11-42, a Resolution Approving a 
Memorandum of Understanding (relating to employment) Between 
the Town of Paradise and the Town of Paradise Confidential/Mid-
Management Association. Covering the Period from July 1, 2011 to 
June 30, 2013.  Roll call vote was unanimous.    
 

TC (RES) [ADOPT] Res 
No 11-41, MOU between 
Town & CMMA 
(Confidential & Mid-
Management 
Employees) relating to 
employment.   

Town Attorney Moore reported to Council regarding the agreement 
proposed for part-time Town Manager services to be provided by 
Charles L. Rough, Jr.; that the term of the contract is December 31, 
2011 through December 31, 2012; that the compensation rate will be 
$45 per hour for the first six-month period, $50 an hour for the 
second six-month period, and that compensation is limited to 960 for 
each six-month period;  that there will be no benefits; and, approval 
of the agreement would result in an overall net savings to the Town 
in the amount of $142,927.74 for Fiscal Years 2011/2012 and 
2012/2013.    Attorney Moore clarified that the 960 hours relates to 
the maximum amount of hours for which the employee may be 
compensated, and that the employee may work additional hours 
without compensation; and, that an action requesting modification to 

 

12



TOWN COUNCIL MINUTES 
Date: October 20, 2011   

3 

Manager Rough’s current contract will come back at the next regular 
Council meeting as a consent calendar item.  
 
Mayor White opened the matter to public comment.  
 
1.  Loren Harvey asked if the Town Manager will be a contract 
employee or an employee of the Town.   
 
Manager Rough stated that this is an employee agreement.  
 
Agenda Item 3(c):  MOTION by Lotter, seconded by DiDuca,  
approved the authorized contract for services covering the Period 
from December 31, 2011 through December 31, 2012 Between the 
Town of Paradise and Charles L. Rough, Jr. for Town Manager 
Services.  Roll call vote was unanimous.   
 

TC (AGT) [ADOPT] 
Employment agreement 
for Town Manager 
services with Charles L. 
Rough, Jr.  (C96-08) 

4.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor White adjourned the Council meeting at 10:15 a.m. 

 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
ALAN WHITE, Mayor 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
JOANNA GUTIERREZ, CMC, Town Clerk     

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



1 

 

Town of Paradise 

Council Agenda Summary 

November 1, 2011 

 

Agenda No.: 3c 

 

 

ORIGINATED BY: Lauren Gill, Assistant Town Manager/Director of Business and 

Housing Services 

 

REVIEWED BY: Charles L. Rough, Jr., Town Manager 

 

SUBJECT: Amend Resolution 09-68 of the Town Council of the Town of 

Paradise Authorizing the Submittal of an Amended Application for 

Funding Under the State of California Energy Efficiency and 

Conservation Block Grant Program (EECBG) 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

 

1. Amend  Resolution No. 09 – 68,  a Resolution of the Town Council of the Town of 

Paradise Authorizing the Town Manager to Submit an Amended Application to 

the California Energy Commission for Funding Under the Energy Efficiency and 

Conservation Block Grant Program – Small City and County Grant Program; or,  

 

2. Decline to submit the amended application and provide alternate direction to 

staff. 

 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program (EECBG) was created by 

the Energy Independence and Security Act of 2007.  The American Recovery and 

Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) is the source of funds for the EECBG program.  The 

California Energy Commission administers the program. It is a block grant program that 

is designed to provide eligible small cities and counties within the State of California 

grant funding to install eligible cost effective energy retrofits within their jurisdiction.  

 

The Energy Commission has determined that the Town of Paradise is eligible to receive 

a grant of $149,925 to implement on or more of the following eligible activities: 

 

 All 28-watt T-8 fluorescent lamps replacing al T-12 fluorescent lamps 

23



2 

 

 All 28-watt T-8 fluorescent lamps replacing older 32-watt T-8 fluorescent lamps.   

 LED or inductive lamps and controls for all exterior applications including street 

lighting, walk way lighting, parking lot and parking garage lighting. 

 High efficiency HVAC system replacement LED conversion of all intersection and 

safety street lights. 

 

In an effort to reduce the burden on local staff and stretch the program dollars as far as 

possible, the Private Industry Council of Butte County, in conjunction with their regional 

governing body, Nortec will be submitting the amended grant application on behalf of 

the Town of Paradise. This amendment addresses the addition of the conversion 

exterior lights at the Town Hall. Nortec has required this amended resolution as part of 

the grant application process. 

 

Town staff has reviewed the application materials and compared the eligible activities 

with our most critical energy-related needs.  Based on that analysis, staff is 

recommending the following items for inclusion under the EECBG program: 

 

 LED Conversion – intersection safety lights  

 T-12 Fluorescent Lamp Replacement at all Town facilities  

 High efficiency HVAC system replacement  

 LED Conversion-exterior lighting at Town Hall  

 

Financial Impact: 

 

EECBG projects are funded under federal economic stimulus legislation.  If funded, the 

conversions would be funded by the grant.  Staff time will be needed to coordinate the 

projects; however, the principal reason for collaborating with Nortec is to reduce our 

time spent on the project, as administrative costs are capped at an artificially low 

amount. 

 

If funded, the conversion will reduce the town’s on-going utility cost. In addition, it will 

prevent the Town for paying for these replacements out of the General Fund. 

24



RESOLUTION NO.:  ________ 

AMEND RESOLUTION 09-68 OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

PARADISE AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITALL OF A REVISED APPLICATION TO THE 

CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION 

BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM. 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paradise recognizes that it is in the interest of the 

regional, state, and national economy to stimulate the economy; create and retain jobs; 

reduce fossil fuel emissions; and reduce total energy usage and improve energy 

efficiency with our jurisdiction; and, 

WHEREAS, Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) funds are 

available though the California Energy Commission’s EECBG program for grants to 

eligible local governments for cost-effective energy efficiency projects; and , 

WHEREAS, the EECBG Program allows for public agencies and non-profit 

entities to apply for EECBG funds on behalf of eligible local governments; and, 

WHEREAS,   the Town of Paradise is eligible for EECBG funding under the 

California Energy Commission’s EECBG Program; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town of Paradise is proposing to collaborate with Nortec to 

implement the energy efficiency projects described in Exhibit A for the purpose of 

qualifying for EECBG funds from the California Energy Commission; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paradise has considered the application of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) to the approval of the energy efficiency 

projects described in Exhibit A; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Town Council of the Town of 

Paradise as follows: 

Section 1: That in compliance with the CEQA, the Town Council of the Town of 

Paradise finds that the approval of the energy efficiency projects described in Exhibit A 

is a project under CEQA that is exempt under Section 15301 of the state CEQA 

guidelines as maintenance to existing facility or a minor alteration to an existing facility. 

Section 2: That the Town Council of the Town of Paradise authorizes Nortec to submit 

an amended application on its behalf to the California Energy Commission for up to 

$149,925 in EECBG funds for the energy efficiency projects described in amended 

Exhibit A. 

25



Section 3: That if recommended for funding by the California Energy Commission, the 

Town of Paradise authorizes Nortec to accept a grant award on its behalf and to enter 

into all necessary contracts and agreements thereto, on its behalf to implement and 

carry out the projects described in amended Exhibit A. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Paradise on the 

1st day of November, 2011. 

 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 NOT VOTING: 

  _____________________ 

 Alan White, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 _____________________  

Joanna Gutierrez, Town Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 

 _____________________  

Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 

 

26



Exhibit A – Description of Proposed Projects 

 

 LED Conversion – intersection safety lights  

 T-12 Fluorescent Lamp Replacement at all Town facilities  

 High efficiency HVAC system replacement  

 LED Conversion-exterior lighting at Town Hall 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



TOWN OF PARADISE 
Council Agenda Summary 

November 1, 2011 
 
 
 AGENDA NO. 3(d) 
ORIGINATED BY: Paul T. Derr, Assistant Public Works Director 
   Lauren Gill, Assistant Town Manager 
 
REVIEWED BY: Charles L. Rough, Jr., Town Manager 
                                                                  
 
SUBJECT:  SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION SAFETY LIGHTING CONVERSION 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
1. Approve the request for proposals to replace the safety lighting at the signalized intersection 

with funding from Energy and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG); AND 
2. Authorize Assistant Public Works Director to advertise this project for bids; OR 
 
3. Reject the request for proposals to replace lighting and provide direction to staff. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Energy and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) Program helps cities and counties implement 
projects and programs that will reduce total energy use and improve energy efficiency in the building 
and transportation sectors.  
 
The existing signalized intersection safety lighting located at various locations throughout the Town 
currently uses 200W and 250W HPS. By switching over to 109W and 168W LED lighting, the Town 
will receive a 43-54% reduction in energy usage.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
This project is funded with American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (AARA) funds. It is a 
direct savings to the Town that would otherwise be spent from the Gas Tax Fund. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that Town Council approve the request for proposal and authorize the Assistant 
Public Works Director to advertise the aforementioned project for bidding. 

28



TOWN OF PARADISE 
Council Agenda Summary 

November 1, 2011 
 
 
 AGENDA NO. 3(e) 
ORIGINATED BY: Paul T. Derr, Assistant Public Works Director 

Lauren Gill, Assistant Town Manager 
 

REVIEWED BY: Charles L. Rough, Jr., Town Manager 
                                                                    
 
SUBJECT:  LIGHTING CONVERSION REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
1. Approve the request for proposals to convert T-12 fluorescent lighting fixtures with T-8 

fluorescent lighting fixtures at Town Hall, Paradise Police Station and install exterior lighting 
upgrades at Town Hall with funding from Energy and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG); 
AND 
 

2. Authorize Assistant Public Works Director to advertise this project for bids; OR 
 
3. Reject the request for proposals to convert lighting and provide direction to staff. 

 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Energy and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) Program helps cities and counties implement 
projects and programs that will reduce total energy use and improve energy efficiency in the building 
and transportation sectors.  
 
Some of the existing lighting located at the Paradise Police Station and Town Hall still uses T12 
fluorescent lighting. By switching over to T-8 fluorescent lighting, the Town will receive a 43-45% 
reduction in energy usage.  
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
This project is funded with American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (AARA) funds. It is a 
direct savings to the Town that would otherwise have to be spent from the General Fund. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that Town Council approve the request for proposal and authorize the Assistant 
Public Works Director to advertise the aforementioned project for bidding. 

29



TOWN OF PARADISE 
Council Agenda Summary 

November 1, 2011 
 
 
 AGENDA NO. 3(f) 
ORIGINATED BY: Paul T. Derr, Assistant Public Works Director 

Lauren Gill, Assistant Town Manager 
 

REVIEWED BY: Charles L. Rough, Jr., Town Manager 
                                                                   
 
SUBJECT:  HVAC REPLACEMENT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
1. Approve the request for proposals to replace 8 HVAC units at Paradise Police Station, Town 

Hall and Vehicle Maintenance facility with funding from Energy and Conservation Block 
Grant (EECBG); and 
 

2. Authorize Assistant Public Works Director to advertise this project for bids; OR 
 
3. Reject the request for proposals to replace HVAC units and provide direction to staff. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Energy and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) Program helps cities and counties implement 
projects and programs that will reduce total energy use and improve energy efficiency in the building 
and transportation sectors.  
 
The existing HVAC units located at the Paradise Police Station, Town Hall and Vehicle Maintenance 
facility are older units that will require replacement with more efficient and cost effective units. By 
replacing the existing units, the Town will realize a 45% reduction in energy usage. 
 
The following are the units considered for replacement:  

 Four 42,000 BTU HVAC units at Paradise Police Station 

 One 30,000 BTU HVAC unit at Paradise Police Station 

 Two 42,000 BTU HVAC units at Paradise Town Hall 

 One  90,000 BTU HVAC unit at Paradise Vehicle Maintenance Facility 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
This project is funded with American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (AARA) funds. It is a 
direct savings to the Town that would otherwise have to be spent from the General Fund. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that Town Council approve the request for proposal and authorize the Assistant 
Public Works Director to advertise the aforementioned project for bidding. 

30



                                                               TOWN OF PARADISE  

                                                      COUNCIL AGENDA SUMMARY  

                                                          DATE: NOVEMBER 1, 2011    

 

                                                                                                                    AGENDA NO. 3(g) 

 

ORIGINATED BY: Charles Rough, Town Manager 

 

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL OF ONE-YEAR PROFESSIONAL  

                     SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH JIM BROSHEARS TO PROVIDE  

                     THE TOWN WITH CONTINUED EMERGENCY OPERATIONS  

                     CENTER (EOC) SUPPORT SERVICES  

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

 

1. Approve a one-year professional services agreement with Jim Broshears to provide  

    Emergency Operations Center (EOC) coordination, planning and training support 

    services in the amount of $ 1.00; or 
 

2. Decline to approve the contract at this time.    

 

BACKGROUND:  

 

Former Fire Chief Jim Broshears has served on a contract basis for the last seven years as the 

Town’s Emergency Services Coordinator assisting the Town Manager as Director of Emergency 

Services in emergency response planning, training, and preparations for the Town.  

 

His specific contracted duties and responsibilities include the following:  

 

1. Provides NIMS/SIMS emergency training for non-public safety Town personnel and the 

    Town’s certified disaster service volunteers; and helps plan and conduct multi-agency training     

    exercises  

2. Keeps the Town’s emergency response plans up-to-date, ensures that they are in compliance 

    with federal and state requirements, and is a user-friendly reference for emergency center   

    personnel during emergencies. 

3. Provides the Director of Emergency Services with continuous assessments of the Town’s  

    emergency response needs, requirements and capabilities. 

   

In addition to his regular contracted responsibilities, Jim has also played a critical role in the 

Town’s Emergency Operations Center during actual emergencies, such as the 2008 windstorms 

and fires.  

 

His recent work in getting Homeland Security monies through the County to pay for the Town’s 

update of its emergency plan (which will be coming to the Council in the near future for your 

review and consideration) is just another example of his continuing commitment to the Town, 

and our community.  

31



Agenda Summary Report  

 

                                                                     -2-       

 

 

DISCUSSION:  

 

His previous contractual compensation has been based on a $ 30/hour rate and in the beginning  

a not-to-exceed $ 5,000 for each annual contract that was later reduced to a not-to-exceed $4, 

000. However, in actuality, the last time that Jim billed the Town for his services was FY 

2008/09 in the amount of $ 2,550.  

 

Because of the Town’s budget problems, he hasn’t charged or billed us since, and yet, he has 

continued to fully perform his contracted responsibilities to the Town. 

 

With Jim’s concurrence, this proposed contract (and the services he will perform) essentially 

remains the same, except now it’s a $1.00 a year contract out of sensitivity to the Town’s current 

financial situation. 

 

Therefore, with our sincere gratitude to Jim, I enthusiastically recommend approval of this 

emergency coordinator professional services contract between the Town of Paradise and Jim 

Broshears.                

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



 1 

Town of Paradise 
Council Agenda Summary 

November 1, 2011 
 

Agenda No.: 3(h) 
 
Originated By: Lauren Gill, Assistant Town Manager 
 
Reviewed By: Charles L. Rough, Jr., Town Manager 
 
Subject: Submittal of the 2011 CalHOME Application to the California State 

Department of Housing and Community Development 
 
 
Council Action Requested: 
 
Adopt Resolution No. 11-____ “A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF PARADISE RESCINDING RESOLUTION 11-29 AND AUTHORIZING THE 
SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION TO THE CALIFORNIA STATE DEPARTMENT OF 
HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FOR FUNDING UNDER THE 
CALHOME PROGRAM; THE EXECUTION OF A STANDARD AGREEMENT IF 
SELECTED FOR SUCH FUNDING AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO; AND ANY 
RELATED DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO PARTICIPATE IN THE CALHOME 
PROGRAM.” 
 
Background: 
 
On August 2, 2011 Council adopted Resolution 11-29 which authorized the submittal of 
a CalHome application in the amount of $900,000.  Since the maximum award for the 
NOFA is $1,000,000.00, another resolution, with the increased award amount, is 
necessary. 
 
A Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) was issued by the Department of Housing and 
Community Development, CalHome Program.  The funding is provided by the passage 
of Proposition 1C, Housing and Emergency Shelter Trust Fund Act of 2006, to provide 
funding to local public agencies or nonprofit corporations for first-time homebuyer 
mortgage assistance and owner-occupied rehabilitation programs. 
 
The Town of Paradise was successfully awarded $1,000,000 in 2000 and $900,000 in 
2008.  Under the current NOFA, the maximum award is $1,000,000. 
 
 

45



 2 

Discussion and Analysis: 
 
Maintaining a constant service level for housing programs is one of the challenges of 
using grant funds.  To alleviate an interruption in cash flow, the Business and Housing 
Services Division would like to apply for $1,000,000 in CalHome funds to supplement 
the existing housing programs. 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The application submittal has no financial impact on the General Fund, and will add an 
additional $1,000,000 in grant funding for the First-Time Homebuyer and Housing 
Rehabilitation programs.  There is no match requirement associated with this grant; 
therefore, an award would also have no financial impact. 

46



 

 

TOWN OF PARADISE 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-____ 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE 

RESCINDING RESOLUTION 11-29 AND AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF AN 

APPLICATION TO THE CALIFORNIA STATE DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FOR FUNDING UNDER THE CALHOME PROGRAM; 

THE EXECUTION OF A STANDARD AGREEMENT IF SELECTED FOR SUCH 

FUNDING AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO; AND ANY RELATED DOCUMENTS 

NECESSARY TO PARTICIPATE IN THE CALHOME PROGRAM. 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paradise (hereinafter referred to as “Town”), a State of 
California municipal corporation, wishes to apply for and receive an allocation of funds 
through the CalHome Program; and 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Housing and Community Development 
(hereinafter referred to as “HCD”) has issued a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) for the 
CalHome program established by Chapter 84, Statutes of 2000 (SB 1656 Alarcon), and 
codified in Chapter 6 (commencing with Section 50650) of Part 2 of Division 31 of the Health 
and Safety Code (the “statue”).  Pursuant to the statute, HCD is authorized to approve funding 
allocations utilizing monies made available by the State Legislature to the CalHome program, 
subject to the terms and conditions of the statute and the CalHome Program Regulations 
adopted by HCD in April 2004; and  

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to submit an application to obtain from HCD an allocation 
of CalHome funds in the amount of $1,000,000.00. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

PARADISE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1. The Town shall submit to HCD an application to participate in the CalHome 

Program in response to the NOFA issued on October 3, 2011, which will request a 
funding allocation for the Downpayment Assistance to First-Time Homebuyers and 
Owner-occupied Residential Rehabilitation  to be located in Paradise, California:  
 

2. If the application for funding is approved, the Town hereby agrees to use the 
CalHome funds for eligible activities in the manner presented in the application as 
approved by HCD and in accordance with regulations cited above and to execute 
any and all other instruments necessary or required by HCD for participation in the 
CalHome program. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

47



 

3. The Town authorizes the Town Manager or his designee(s), to execute in the 
name of the Town, the application, the Standard Agreement, and all other 
documents required by HCD for participation in the CalHome program, and any 
amendments thereto. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PARADISE THIS 
1ST DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2011, BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 
 
AYES:   _____ 
NOES:   _____ 
ABSENT:   _____ 
NOT VOTING:   _____ 
 
 
            
      _________________________________ 
      Alan White, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Joanna Gutierrez, Town Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 

48



      

 

 

 

                                                       TOWN OF PARADISE 

                                                COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT   

NOVEMBER 1, 2011 

                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                                     AGENDA NO. 3(i) 

ORIGINATED BY: Charles Rough, Town Manager  

REVIEWED BY: Dwight L. Moore, Town Attorney 

 

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDED APPROVAL OF THE TOWN MANAGER’S CURRENT  

                     AMENDED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT TO DEFER HIS ACCRUED  

                     BENEFITS PAY-OUT TO FISCAL YEAR 2012/13 AND TO TERMINATE  

                     HIS CURRENT EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT EFFECTIVE DECEMBER  

                     30, 2011 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

 

Approve Town Manager’s current amended employment agreement to defer his accrued 

benefits pay-out upon retirement from the current Fiscal Year 2011/12 to Fiscal Year 

2012/13, and terminate his current employment agreement effective December 30, 2011. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Both the Town Manager’s current amended employment agreement and his one-year part-time 

Town Manager employment agreement were proposed for the Town Council’s review and 

consideration at their special October 20, 2011 meeting.  

 

However, because the Town Manager’s current amended employment agreement was not listed 

on the agenda face sheet as a separate action item, the Town Council could only take action on 

the proposed one-year, part-time Town Manager employment agreement, which the Council 

approved.  

 

Therefore, the Town Manager’s current amended employment agreement, which defers the 

Manager’s estimated accrued pay-out of $ 34,320.61 to next Fiscal Year 2012/13, and establishes 

a December 30, 2011 termination date to the current agreement, is re-submitted to the Town 

Council for appropriate action. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 

Represents part of the savings plan already identified for the current fiscal year in the Town 

Manager’s October 20, 2011 staff report.    

49



                                                                                         of  7 1 

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 

 THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT, made and entered into 

this 20th day of October, 2011 by and between the TOWN OF PARADISE, a municipal 

corporation of the State of California, (TOWN) and Charles L. Rough, Jr., 

(EMPLOYEE). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, the TOWN and EMPLOYEE desire to amend and restate the 

agreement entered into on July 2, 1996 in accordance with this amended and restated 

employment agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the TOWN desires to continue to employ the services of Charles L. 

Rough, Jr. as Town Manager of the Town of Paradise; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the TOWN to provide certain benefits, establish 

certain conditions of employment, and to set working conditions of EMPLOYEE; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the TOWN to: 

 

  Secure and retain the services of the EMPLOYEE and to provide   

  inducement for him to remain in such employment; 

 

  Establish a basis for good working relationships, to avoid possible   

  misunderstandings, and to provide special benefits to the EMPLOYEE in  

  recognition of the unique nature of his position; 

 

  Make possible full work productivity by assuring EMPLOYEE’s morale  

  and peace of mind with respect to future security; 

 

  Act as a deterrent against malfeasance or dishonesty for personal gain on  

  the part of the EMPLOYEE; and 

 

  Provide a just means for terminating EMPLOYEE’s services at such time 

  as he may be unable to fully discharge his duties due to illness or disability 

  or when the TOWN may otherwise desire to terminate his employment;  

  and 

 

 WHEREAS, Charles L. Rough, Jr. desires to continue to accept employment as 

the Town Manager of the Town of Paradise; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein 

contained, the parties agree as follows: 

50



                                                                                         of  7 2 

 

SECTION 1: DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

A. The duties, responsibilities and authority of the EMPLOYEE, shall be 

those specified in Chapter 2.04 of the Paradise Municipal Code and such 

other legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the Town 

Council shall assign. 

 

B. The Town Council agrees to direct its concerns and communications to the 

administration through the Town Manager.  The EMPLOYEE agrees to 

respond promptly to all inquiries from the Mayor and the Town Council.  

Individual inquiries of council members regarding question of fact, 

clarification of policies and requests for services shall be responded to 

promptly by EMPLOYEE. 

 

SECTION 2: TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 

A. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with 

the right of the Town Council to terminate the services of EMPLOYEE at 

any time as an at will employee, subject only to the provisions set forth in 

Section 4, Paragraphs A and B of this Agreement. 

 

B. Nothing in the Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with 

the right of the EMPLOYEE to resign at any time his position with the 

TOWN, subject only to the provisions set forth in Section 4, Paragraph C 

of this Agreement. 

 

C. EMPLOYEE agrees to remain in the exclusive employ of TOWN until 

December 30, 2011 “Termination Date” and to neither seek, accept, or to 

become employed by any other employer that would have a detrimental 

impact on his duties and responsibilities as Town Manager for the Town 

of Paradise until Termination Date, unless Termination Date is changed as 

hereinafter provided.  The term “employed” shall not be construed to 

include occasional teaching, writing, or consulting performed on 

EMPLOYEE’s time off. 

 

D. (1) It shall be the responsibility of the EMPLOYEE to notify the 

 Council of the termination date of this Agreement.  Notice of the 

 Termination Date shall be given to the Council six (6) months 

 prior to the Termination Date.  Failure of EMPLOYEE to give 

 such notice shall cause this Agreement to expire on its own terms; 

 

(2) After receiving notice of the Termination Date under Section 

2D(1), the Town Council may give EMPLOYEE notice of its 

intent to renew this Agreement.  If the Council does not give such 

notice, this Agreement shall terminate by its own terms. The 

51



                                                                                         of  7 3 

Council shall notify EMPLOYEE of its intent to renew this 

Agreement ninety (90) days prior to the Termination Date of this 

Agreement;  

 

SECTION 3:  SUSPENSION 

 

 After providing the EMPLOYEE with a written notice stating the Council’s 

intention to remove him, at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of his removal, 

the Town Council may suspend EMPLOYEE from duty, but his compensation shall 

continue until the effective date of his removal.  Council may suspend EMPLOYEE in 

accordance with the provisions of the Paradise Municipal Code 2.04.240(C).  

EMPLOYEE may exercise his right for a public hearing in accordance with the Paradise 

Municipal Code 2.04.240(B) or California Government Code Section 54957. 

 

SECTION 4:  TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE PAY 

 

A. Should TOWN elect to exercise its right to terminate EMPLOYEE 

without cause, then TOWN  shall give at least ninety (90) days advance, 

written notice to him. TOWN shall have the right to separate 

EMPLOYEE immediately from TOWN service, with the payment of 

cash severance pay in a lump sum equal to six (6) month’s salary and pay 

for unused annual vacation leave, administrative leave, and sick leave in 

accordance with the Town Personnel System Rules, or in the TOWN’s  

option, require EMPLOYEE to continue to perform services under this 

Agreement until the ninety (90) day period has elapsed. 

 

B. In the event TOWN, at any time during the term of this Agreement, 

reduces the salary or other financial benefits of EMPLOYEE in a greater 

percentage than an applicable across-the-board reduction for all employees 

of the TOWN; or if the Council refuses, following written notice 

requesting compliance with any other provision benefiting EMPLOYEE 

herein; or if EMPLOYEE resigns following suggestion, whether formal 

or informal, by the Mayor or Town Council that he resign, then the 

EMPLOYEE may, at his option, deem the Agreement to be involuntarily 

terminated at the date of such reduction or such refusal to comply with the 

meaning and context of this Agreement, and the severance pay provision 

under Paragraph A of this Section shall apply.  

 

C. In the event EMPLOYEE voluntarily resigns his position with the 

TOWN before expiration of the above term of employment, 

EMPLOYEE shall give the TOWN  forty-five (45) days written notice in 

advance or such advance notice as may be otherwise mutually agreed 

upon.  In case of such voluntary resignation, the TOWN shall have no 

obligation to pay the severance pay referred to in Paragraph A above. 

 

 

52



                                                                                         of  7 4 

 

 

 

SECTION 5: PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

 

A. The Town Council shall review and evaluate the performance of the 

EMPLOYEE at least once annually.  The review and evaluation shall be 

in accordance with the duties outlined in Section 1 and specific criteria 

developed jointly by the Town Council and EMPLOYEE.   The criteria 

may be added to or deleted from as the Town Council may, from time to 

time, determine in consultation with the EMPLOYEE.  Further, the Town 

Council shall provide an adequate opportunity for the EMPLOYEE to 

discuss his evaluation with the Town Council, and the results of such 

evaluations shall be reduced to writing and agreed to by both parties. 

 

B. Annually, the Town Council and the EMPLOYEE shall define such goals 

and performance objectives which they determine necessary for the proper 

operation of the TOWN and for the attainment of the Town Council’s 

policy objectives.  Such goals and objectives shall be reduced to writing, 

and a relative priority shall be established among the goals and objectives.  

They shall generally be attainable within the time limitations as specified, 

and the annual operating and capital budgets and appropriations provided. 

 

C. In effecting the provisions of this Section, the Town Council and the 

EMPLOYEE mutually agree to abide by the provisions of applicable law, 

ordinances, resolutions and current policies of the TOWN. 

 

SECTION 6: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

 

A. The TOWN agrees to budget and pay for the professional dues and 

subscriptions of the EMPLOYEE necessary for his continuation and full 

participation in national, regional, state and local associations and 

organizations necessary and desirable for his continued professional 

advancement and for the good of the TOWN at a cost not to exceed 

budget allocations approved by the Town Council. 

 

B. The TOWN agrees to budget and pay for the travel, subsistence and other 

expenses for professional, business and official travel, courses, seminars, 

conferences and occasions adequate to continue to professional 

development of the EMPLOYEE and to adequately pursue necessary 

official business and other functions for the good of the TOWN.  These 

expenses shall not exceed budget allocations approved by the Town 

Council. 

 

 

 

53



                                                                                         of  7 5 

 

 

 

SECTION 7: HOURS OF WORK 

 

A. The minimum workweek of the EMPLOYEE shall be forty (40) hours, 

plus any additional work time reasonably required to discharge the duties 

and responsibilities of the Town Manager.  Because the EMPLOYEE 

will devote a great deal of time outside normal office hours to the business 

of the TOWN, and because flexibility in hours worked and work schedule 

benefit both the TOWN and EMPLOYEE, the EMPLOYEE has some 

discretion as to his work schedule and hours worked. 

 

B. In further recognition of the fact that the EMPLOYEE must devote a 

great deal of time outside normal business hours to the business of the 

TOWN, he shall be entitled to administrative leave in accordance with the 

provisions of the Memorandums of Understanding applicable to 

Management Employees. 

 

SECTION 8: SALARY AND OTHER BENEFITS 

 

 A. Salary.   The TOWN shall pay EMPLOYEE for his services   

  rendered pursuant to this Agreement, an annual base salary at Step E of  

  the Salary Schedule attached as Exhibit "A" payable in installments at the  

  same time as other employees are paid.  Effective July 1, 2011   

  EMPLOYEE’s annual base salary shall be at Step F.   

   

 B. Vehicle/Cellular phone Allowance.  The TOWN shall provide to   

  EMPLOYEE vehicle/cellular phone allowance of $200 per month  

  for Fiscal Years 2009/10 and 2010/11.  Commencing July 1, 2011,   

  and through the duration of this Agreement, the TOWN shall provide to  

  EMPLOYEE vehicle/cellular allowance of $400 per month.    

 

C. Indemnification.  The TOWN shall indemnify and defend EMPLOYEE 

in accordance with the provisions of California Government Code 

Sections 825 et seq. 995 et seq., and related statutes. 

 

 D. Life Insurance.    Town shall provide prepaid life insurance to   

  EMPLOYEE in an amount of one hundred fifty thousand ($150,000)  

  dollars. 

 

 E. Cost of Living/Other Benefits.    All provisions of TOWN codes and  

  regulations, and rules of the TOWN relating to cost of living increases,  

  vacation, sick leave, retirement, deferred income contributions, holidays,  

  disability, health and life insurance, and other fringe benefits and working  

  conditions as they now exist, or hereafter may be amended, as well as the  

54



                                                                                         of  7 6 

  resolution of the Town Council fixing rates of compensation and estimated 

  fringe benefits for management employees of the TOWN shall apply to  

  EMPLOYEE, except as herein provided. 

 

 F. Annual Vacation.    EMPLOYEE’s total vacation accrual shall be limited  

  to no more than twice the annual amount provided. 

  

 G. Sick Leave.    EMPLOYEE’s Sick leave may be accumulated to a   

  maximum of two thousand (2,000) hours.  EMPLOYEE shall not earn 

  beyond two thousand (2,000) hours. 

 

 H. TOWN shall provide to EMPLOYEE management administrative leave  

  compensation on an annual basis as identified in the Management Group  

  MOU.   

 

 I. Commencing September 28, 2010, EMPLOYEE shall pay 75% of the  

   PERS employee share contribution until June 30, 2011.  Effective   

  July 1, 2011, EMPLOYEE shall pay 86% of the PERS employee share  

  contribution.  

 

J. Upon his effective date of retirement, which is December 30, 2011, 

EMPLOYEE agrees to defer, until July 1, 2012, the pay-out of his 

accrued vacation and any other benefits by the TOWN, which the TOWN 

is ordinarily obligated to pay on employment separation from TOWN. 

 

SECTION 9: GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

A. This amended and restated Agreement shall become effective on October 

20, 2011. 

 

B. The text herein shall constitute the entire Agreement between the parties. 

 

C. Nothing shall restrict the ability of the Council and EMPLOYEE to 

mutually, and in writing, amend or adjust the terms of this Agreement.  

EMPLOYEE reserves the right to discuss the terms or termination of this 

Agreement with the Town Council as a whole in either closed or open 

regular sessions, as state law allows and as the EMPLOYEE deems 

appropriate. 

 

D. EMPLOYEE shall maintain a residence within the TOWN during the 

term of his employment. 

 

 

E. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is 

held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this 

55



                                                                                         of  7 7 

Agreement, or portions thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall not be 

affected, and shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

F. This Agreement is personal to the parties and shall not be assigned. 

 

G. This Agreement contains the sole and exclusive agreement of the parties 

and correctly states the rights, duties and obligations of the parties.  Any 

oral or written representations or negotiations not expressly set forth in 

this Agreement are of no force or effect.  
 

 

 

 

   IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Paradise has caused this Agreement to 

be signed and executed on its behalf by its Mayor, and the Employee has signed and 

executed this Agreement, both in duplicate, the date and year first above written. 

 

 

 

 

             

ALAN WHITE, Mayor   CHARLES L. ROUGH, JR., Town Manager 
 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

 

        

JOANNA GUTIERREZ, Town Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

 

 

       

DWIGHT L. MOORE, Town Attorney 

56



57



58



 

 

 

 

 

                                                        TOWN OF PARADISE 

                                                  COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

                                                    DATE: NOVEMBER 1, 2011   

 

 

                                                                                                                      AGENDA NO. 7(a)        

 

ORIGINATED BY: Charles Rough, Town Manager  

 

SUBJECT: DESIGNATION OF TWO COUNCIL MEMBERS TO SERVE ON THE  

                    INTERVIEW PANEL FOR THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/TOWN  

                    ENGINEER POSITION  

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

 

Designate two members of the Town Council to serve on the interview panel for the Public 

Works Director/Town Engineer position 

 

BACKGROUND:  

 

The Town Council is aware that the Town has been recruiting for a new Public Works 

Director/Town Engineer to replace Dennis Schmidt, who left after fourteen years of service 

when he was hired as Asst. General Services Director.        

 

The Town received 14 total applications and resumes for the position by our deadline. There are 

6 candidates that we have determined not only meet minimum qualifications for the position, but 

possess significant experience relevant to the types of engineering challenges and capital projects 

that the Town will be facing in the future.  

 

The actual interview panel, which will include two members of our Town Council, and Asst. 

Town Manager/Development Services Director Lauren Gill, is still being formed.  

 

We expect that this interview process will take a full day. A date and time for the actual 

interview panel has not been established yet, but will be arranged in a manner to best 

accommodate the schedules of the interview panel and the candidates.  

 

      

59



 TOWN OF PARADISE 

 Council Agenda Summary 

 Date: November 1, 2011 

 

 

 AGENDA NO. 7(b) 

  

ORIGINATED BY: Charles L. Rough, Jr., Town Manager 

 

SUBJECT:  RECOMMENDED DATE AND TIME FOR THE TOWN OF PARADISE’S 

5
TH

 ANNUAL CHRISTMAS TREE LIGHTING/CANNED FOOD DRIVE 

CEREMONY AT PARADISE COMMUNITY PARK 

 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

 

1. Approve Saturday, December 3, 2011 at 5:30pm as the date and time for the Town of 

Paradise’s fifth annual Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremony/Food Drive at the Paradise Community 

Park 

 

2. Not approve this event, due to the financial impact to the Town of Paradise. 

 

 

BACKGROUND:  

 

The Town Council will recall that for the last four years our Town has had very successful annual 

Christmas Tree Lighting Ceremonies at the Paradise Community Park.  It has been held in early 

December for the last four years. 

 

This year we are coordinating in conjunction with the Paradise Chamber of Commerce’s 12 Days of 

Christmas Ridgefest and the Christmas Lighted Truck Parade Canned Food Drive.  The Town would 

promote the canned food drive by advertising both print and Town radio, and having food donations 

bins placed at the park.  The Christmas Lighted Truck Parade would drive past the park taking  

Pearson to Skyway, up Skyway, turning around at Holiday Market parking lot, then back down, 

returning to the Izzy’s parking lot.  Canned food drop off bins will be located at Izzy’s, as well as 

other supermarkets and businesses around Town. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

 

The cost will be $850.00 for the sound system, print advertising and refreshments; however, 

anticipated donations are expected to defray this cost. 

 

 

60


